ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 23, 2012
1:31 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair

Senator Bill Welechowski, Vice Chair
Senat or Joe Paskvan

Senat or John Coghi | |

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Lesil MCuire
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 200

"An  Act establishing certain procedures related to the
identification of suspects by eyewitnesses to crimnal
of fenses. "

- MOVED CSSB 200(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 210

“"An Act relating to crinmes against children; establishing a new
aggravating factor at sentencing in certain crinmes against
children; relating to crimnal nonsupport; adding to the list of
crinmes against children that bar the Departnment of Public Safety
fromissuing to a person a license to drive a school bus; adding
an exception to a provision that requires the Departnment of
Heal th and Social Services to nmake tinely, reasonable efforts to
provide famly support services to prevent out-of-hone placenent
of a child; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSSB 210(JUD) OQUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BI LL NO 212
"An Act relating to crines of human trafficking; establishing
the Human Trafficking Task Force to evaluate services avail able
to victinms of human traffi cking; and relating to the
recommendati ons and report of the task force."

- MOVED CSSB 212(JUD) OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO 180

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 23, 2012



“"An Act directing the Departnment of Transportation and Public
Facilities to develop and inplenment standards and operating
procedures allowing for the wuse in the construction and
mai nt enance of transportation projects and public facilities and
in the construction of projects by public and private entities
of gravel or aggregate materials that contain a |imted anount
of naturally occurring asbestos, and authorizing use on an
interim basis of those materials for <certain transportation
projects and public facilities; relating to certain clains
arising out of or in connection wth the use of gravel or
aggregate materials containing a |limted anmount of naturally
occurring asbestos; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD

SENATE BILL NO 138

"An Act relating to the inclusion of the charges of a vendor of
goods or services on the bills of certain telecomunications
carriers; and adding an unlawful act to the Al aska Unfair Trade
Practices and Consuner Protection Act."

- HEARD & HELD
SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 19
Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to the nenbership of the Redistricting Board.
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT' HEARD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 200

SHORT TI TLE: EYEW TNESSES AND LI NEUPS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) FRENCH

02/ 17/ 12 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 17/ 12 (S) JUD, FIN

02/ 27/ 12 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 27/ 12 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 27/ 12 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 16/ 12 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/16/12 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 21/ 12 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 21/ 12 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 23/ 12 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

BILL: SB 210

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 23, 2012



SHORT TI TLE: CRI MES AGAI NST CHI LDREN
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MOGUI RE

02/ 21/ 12 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 21/ 12 (S JUD, FIN

02/ 27/ 12 (S JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 27/ 12 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 27/ 12 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 16/ 12 (S JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 16/ 12 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 21/ 12 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 21/ 12 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 23/ 12 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
BILL: SB 212

SHORT TI TLE: HUMAN TRAFFI CKI NG TASK FORCE
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MOGUI RE

02/ 21/ 12 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 21/ 12 (S JUD, FIN

02/ 29/ 12 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 29/ 12 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 29/ 12 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 16/ 12 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 16/ 12 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 23/ 12 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

BILL: SB 180
SHORT TITLE: NATURALLY OCCURRI NG ASBESTOS | N GRAVEL
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(S) OLSON

01/ 27/ 12 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 27/ 12 (S) TRA, JUD

02/ 23/ 12 (S) TRA AT 1: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 23/ 12 (S) Moved CSSB 180(TRA) Qut of Committee
02/ 23/ 12 (S) M NUTE( TRA)

02/ 24/ 12 (S) TRA RPT CS 3DP NEW TI TLE

02/ 24/ 12 (S) DP: KOOKESH, MENARD, THOVAS

02/ 24/ 12 (S) FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER JUD

03/ 12/ 12 (S) JUD AT 12:30 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 12/ 12 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 12/ 12 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 23/ 12 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

BILL: SB 138
SHORT TITLE: TH RD- PARTY CHARGES ON TELEPHONE BI LLS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) W ELECHOWSBKI, DAVI S, EGAN

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 23, 2012



01/ 17/ 12 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/6/12

01/ 17/ 12 (S READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/17/12 (S) L&C, JUD

02/ 02/ 12 (S L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 02/ 12 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 02/ 12 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 23/ 12 (S L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 23/ 12 (S <Bill Hearing Postponed>

02/ 28/ 12 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 28/ 12 (S) Moved CSSB 138(L&C) Qut of Conmittee
02/ 28/ 12 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 29/ 12 (S) L& RPT CS 3DP 2NR SAME TI TLE
02/ 29/ 12 (S DP: EGAN, DAVI S, PASKVAN

02/ 29/ 12 (S) NR: G ESSEL, MENARD

03/ 23/ 12 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

AMY SALTZMAN, Staff

Senator MCGuire

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: On behalf of the sponsor, explained the
changes in the CS for SB 210, version D and the proposed
anendnent to SB 212.

DAVI D SCOTT, Staff

Senat or Donny O son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on SB 180 on behal f of
t he sponsor.

ROGER HEALY, Chief Engi neer

Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF)
Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded supporting testinony for SB 180.

JOE MCLAUGHLI N, MD, State Epidem ol ogi st

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 180 and stated that there
was no safe | evel of asbestos.

MORGAN JOHNSON, Mayor
Cty of Anbler

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 23, 2012



Anbl er, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 180.

SCOI'T JONES, Vice- Mayor

Cty of Anbler

Anmbl er, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 180.

ELI ZABETH SAAGULI K HENSLEY, Corporate and Public Policy Liaison
NANA Regi onal Corporation

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 180.

LANCE M LLER, Vice President of Resources

NANA Regi onal Corporation

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 180.

SARI THA ANJI LVEL, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

G vil Division

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 180 as
counsel to DOTPF.

THOMVAS PRESLEY, Intern

Senat or W el echowski

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 138 on behal f of the sponsor.

MARI E DARLI N

AARP

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 138.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:31:51 PM

CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:31 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Paskvan, Coghill, Welechowski and Chair
French.

SB 200- EYEW TNESSES AND LI NEUPS

1: 33: 18 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 23, 2012



CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 200, and asked
for a notion to adopt the proposed conmittee substitute (CS),
version |.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noved to adopt the work draft CS for SB
200, | abeled 27-LS1136\I1, as the working docunent.

CHAI R FRENCH, speaking as the sponsor of SB 200, reviewed the
changes made in the current CS. Page 1, line 12, the word
"relevant”™ was added to clarify that only information relevant
to the situation should be collected in the statenent. For
exanple, the weather <conditions were not relevant iif the
eyew t ness account occurred indoors. Page 2, lines 9-11, clarify
that the admssibility of eyewitness identification as evidence
was not precluded by the failure of an agency to adopt
procedures or satisfy the requirenment under subsection (a).
Finally, technical changes were made in Section 1, subsection
(a)(2) on page 2, to clarify provi si ons about t est
adm ni strators. Finding no questions about the CS, he asked for
a notion.

1: 35: 05 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI rnoved to report CS for SB 200, version |,
from commttee wth individual recomendations and attached
fiscal note(s).

CHAI R FRENCH announced that wthout objection, CSSB 200(JUD)
moved fromthe Senate Judiciary Standing Conmttee.

SB 210- CRI MES AGAI NST CHI LDREN

1:35: 36 PM

CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 210, and asked
for a notion to adopt the proposed conmttee substitute (CS),
version D

1:35:42 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noved to adopt the work draft CS for SB
210, | abeled 27-LS1362\D, as the working docunent.

CHAI R FRENCH announced that wthout objection version D was
before the commttee.

AMY SALTZMAN, staff to Senator MQ@ire, sponsor of SB 210,
explained that version D was the sane as [version M that was
| ast before the conmttee. She summarized that the bill provides
harsher penalties for anyone that causes physical injury to a

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 23, 2012



child. Section 1 increases the protection from under 10 years of
age to under 12 years of age in regard to third degree assault
for physical injury to a child. Section 2 provides a class C
felony for anyone who wthholds food or water and causes
protracted harm to the child's health. Section 4 anends the
definition of "serious physical injury" to include:

(C© physical injury to a person under 12 years of age
t hat causes

(1) serious disfigurenent;

(ii1) inpairnment of health, by serious bruising or
ot her injury, t hat reasonably requires nedica
eval uation or
treatment by a health care professional

(iti1) loss or inpairment of the function of a
body
menber or organ; or

(iv) serious inpedinment of blood circulation or
br eat hi ng;

M5. SALTZMAN said the sponsor worked closely with the Departnent
of Law (DOL) on the anended definition.

CHAI R FRENCH said the bill was a good idea, because kids deserve
this kind of protection.

1: 38:11 PM

SENATOR COGHILL referred to Section 4, page 3, lines 9-10, and
said he wanted to nmake sure he understood the neaning of
"recklessly fails to provide." He interpreted it to nean that
soneone purposefully w thholds food or drink such that it causes
physi cal i npairnent.

CHAI R FRENCH sai d that was his reading.

SENATOR PASKVAN said he understood "reckless" to nean a gross
deviation fromthe nornmal standard of care for a child.

SENATOR COGHILL said he wanted to nmake sure this would not catch
people that had other failures in their life, but did not intend
to harmthe child.

CHAI R FRENCH found no further questions and asked for a notion.

1: 39: 41 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 23, 2012



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noved to report CS for SB 210 from
commttee with individual recomendations and attached fi scal
not e(s).

CHAI R FRENCH announced that wthout objection, CSSB 210(JUD)
nmoved from Senate Judiciary Standing Comm ttee.

SB 212- HUMAN TRAFFI CKI NG TASK FORCE

1: 40: 02 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 212 and noted
there was an anendnent.

CHAIR FRENCH noved Anmendnent 1, |abeled 27-LS1370\A. 1, and
obj ected for purposes of an expl anati on.

AVENDVENT 1
OFFERED | N THE SENATE BY SENATOR MCGUI RE
Page 1, line 10:
Del ete "and"
Page 1, line 11, follow ng "Services":
Insert ", and two nenbers, appointed by the
gover nor, representing nongovernnent al health and

soci al services organi zations that provide services to

victinms of human trafficking"

Page 2, line 23, following "The":

I nsert "state agency"”

Page 2, line 25, follow ng "expenses, of the":

| nsert "state agency"

Page 2, line 27, follow ng "Services."

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 23, 2012



I nsert "The nongovernnental health and social service
organi zati ons whose nenbers are appointed by the
governor shall be responsible for their nenbers' costs
in participating on the task force."

1:40: 39 PM

AMY SALTZMAN, staff to Senator MQ@iire, sponsor of SB 212,
expl ained that the anendnent adds two state agency nenbers to
the Human Trafficking Task Force. The governor woul d appoint the
menbers who woul d represent nongovernmental organizations that
work with victinms of human trafficking.

CHAI R FRENCH renoved his objection and announced that Amendnent
1 was adopted. Finding no further discussion, he asked for a
not i on.

1:41: 34 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI noved report CS for 212, version A as
anended, from commttee wth individual recomendations and
attached fiscal note(s).

CHAI R FRENCH announced that CSSB 212(JUD) noved from the Senate
Judi ci ary Standing Conmitt ee.

At ease from1l:41 p.m to 1:43 p.m

SB 180- NATURALLY OCCURRI NG ASBESTOS | N GRAVEL

1: 43: 52 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 180 and asked for
a notion to adopt the proposed commttee substitute (CS),
version E.

SENATOR W ELECHOASKI noved to adopt the work draft CS for SB
180, | abeled 27-LS1219\E, as the working docunent.

CHAI R FRENCH announced that w thout objection, version E was
before the commttee. He asked M. Scott to review the changes
made in the CS.

1:44: 24 PM
At ease from1l:44:53 p.m to 1:45:00 p. m

DAVI D SCOIT, staff to Senator Donny O son, sponsor of SB 180,
expl ai ned the foll ow ng changes:

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- March 23, 2012



Page 3, line 25, following "aggregate nmaterial." insert al
| anguage to the end of Section 1, page 4, line 4, as follows:

Health risks resulting from asbestos exposure vary
according to the level, type, and duration of
exposure. Wiile exposure to very small concentrations
of asbestos may pose sonme health risk, there is not a
practical way to prevent all exposure to asbestos for
residents in close proximty to deposits that contain
naturally occurring asbestos. The intent of this act
is to establish a sensible analytical threshold for
detection of naturally occurring asbestos in gravel or
ot her aggregate material and to establish appropriate
exceptions for the use of gravel or other aggregate
material that contains naturally occurring asbestos
for certain public facilities and transportation
projects involving unusual circunstances, including
projects in renote locations or in regions where
gravel or other aggregate material free fromnaturally
occurring asbestos is not reasonably avail abl e.

Page 6, lines 12-13, insert:

(2) coordinate wth the Departnent of Nat ur al
Resources to establish and mai ntain a database of

MR. SCOIT noted that he al so provided additional backup nmateri al
for the bill packets.

CHAI R FRENCH expressed concern about the reference on page 4,

lines 17-18, and throughout the bill, to "content equal to or
greater than 0.25 percent naturally occurring asbestos by nmass.”
Initially, the bill said, "less than or equal 0.25 percent

naturally occurring asbestos by mass.” He said he would look to
witnesses to find out how nuch gravel varies in the content of
naturally occurring asbestos (NOA), and if a lower-limt cap
m ght be in order so people would know they were being directed
to use gravel with the | owest possible asbestos content.

MR. SCOTT responded that discussions with other |egislators and
the administration indicate that 0.25 percent was "the new
zero." He offered his belief that it was an issue of testing,
and deferred further explanation to the representative from
Departnment of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF).

CHAIR FRENCH |isted the individuals that signed up to testify
and answer questi ons.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- March 23, 2012



1:49: 21 PM

ROGER HEALY, Chief Engineer, Departnent of Transportation and
Public Facilities (DOTPF), explained that the change in
definition emulates what California did in regard to the use of
gravel with naturally occurring asbestos. That state set up an
analytical testing nethod called California Air Resources Board
(CARB) 435. After a nunber of test iterations, the board adopted
a detection imt of 0.25 percent by mass, or 1 in 400. Sanples
are anal yzed according to certain points and if 1 asbestos fi ber
is found in 400 points, the asbestos content is 0.25 percent. If
there is not an asbestos fiber under one of those points, the
material is classifies as non- NOA.

1:51:35 PM
CHAIR FRENCH asked how many sanples from a gravel pit would
ensure a good representation.

MR. HEALY replied the follow up regul ations shoul d address that.
CHAI R FRENCH asked for a ball park estinmate.

MR. HEALY estimated that DOTPF drilled 12 or nore holes on a 3-5
acre site in the Anbl er area.

1:53:14 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSEKI asked if DOTPF takes or suggests
precautions for people working with material that potentially
cont ai ns asbest os.

MR. HEALY explained that working wth naturally occurring
asbestos was a different issue than asbestos abatenent in a
buil di ng. Both COCccupational Safety Health Adm nistration (OSHA)
and Mning Safety Health Adm nistration (MSHA) have a 0.1 fiber
per cubic centimeter airborne standard for exposure to both NOA
and asbestos in a building. If DOIPF is aware of naturally
occurring asbestos in an existing project, it wll neet the
exi sting airborne standard. Drillers and anyone operating near a
crusher or driving on the road should be following the |aws
regardi ng dust mitigation, he said.

1:56:45 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked if these workers wear respirators.

MR. HEALY replied, "this would be the safety conponent of the

contractor, but they should.”™ He added that dust in general is a
heal th i ssue and anyone on a dusty site should take precautions.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 23, 2012



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  asked if he was famliar wth the
Envi r onnment al Protection Agency (EPA) recommendations for
working with naturally occurring asbestos.

MR. HEALY answered yes; the EPA has recommendati ons but not any
true direction. For construction standards on projects, DOIPF
will rely heavily on the California restrictions such as speed
l[imts, watering, and a dust mtigation program

CHAI R FRENCH asked if there was an upper limt beyond which NOA
mat eri al shoul d not be used.

MR HEALY said no, but states have westled with the issue.

CHAI R FRENCH asked what concentrations of naturally occurring
asbestos were in the gravel pits in the Anbler area.

2:00: 26 PM

MR, HEALY replied the DOTPF test results were prelimnary, but
two sites tested below 0.25 percent by nass, and another site
tested both above and bel ow .25 percent by nass.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if in the past DOIPF had worked with the

provision in subsection (d) on page 9, lines 13-17. It says the
department nmay not wuse nmaterial that contains equal to or
greater than 0.25 percent NOA wunless it is economcally

unreasonable to undertake the project using material that is
free from NOA

MR. HEALY replied DOTPF bal ances what is econom cally reasonable

on every project. The focus of the bill is to allow the use of
NCA material within a project; it is not to say that the fina
exposure wll be NOA material. The assunption is that the
surface cap will mnimze any airborne NOA

CHAIR FRENCH asked how DOTPF would apply that standard in
bui |l di ng a road.

MR. HEALY said he and others would consider things |ike the
daily traffic and nmintenance procedures over the lifespan of
t he road.

CHAIR FRENCH said it sounded |ike capping material would be a

viable option in Anbler, but he had not gotten that inpression
from ot her conversations.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 23, 2012



MR. HEALY replied that in the case of a gravel road, he would
consider the daily traffic and the mai ntenance requirenents over
a 20-50 year Ilifespan. If the operational intent was to do
seasonal grading and the expected disturbance |evel was 6-9
inches, a safety factor would be added to the cap to accommodate
the expected activity. A nmaintenance conponent would also be
contenplated to bring in additional non-NOA material to build up
t he capping | ayer as necessary.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if the use of a capping material was a viable
option in Anbler.

MR. HEALY said that from a health perspective, the acceptable
| evel of exposure by the public on a new project was |ess than
0. 25 percent by nmss.

CHAIR FRENCH commented that for all practical purposes the
accept abl e exposure | evel for the public was zero.

MR. HEALY said yes, and DOTPF found materials in the Anbler area
that were less than 0.25 percent by nass. However, an economc
conponent of the project was that the nmaterials were not
i mredi at el y accessi bl e by pernanent road.

2:09: 06 PM
MR. SCOTT added that NOA containing material or aggregate woul d
only be wused if it was economcally wunreasonable to do
ot herw se.

CHAIR FRENCH said he would like to discuss the idea further to
try to give it "nore teeth."

SENATOR COGHI LL asked what other potentially harnful particles
in dust mght have a concentration of 0.25 percent by nass.

MR. HEALY deferred the question to Dr. MLaughlin.

2:11: 33 PM

JOE MCLAUGHLIN, WMD, state epidem ol ogist, Departnent of Health
and Social Services (DHSS), said he was not aware of any other
toxin with the same 0.25 percent threshold, but at certain
levels dust itself was a human health concern. Available data
indicates that dust that is 2.5 mcrons (PM 2.5) in dianeter is
strongly associated with adverse health events, such as coronary
heart and cerebral vascular diseases. The data are less clear
for dust particles that are 10 mcrons (PM 10) in dianmeter, but
have been associated with adverse health effects.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- March 23, 2012



CHAI R FRENCH asked if 10-mcron particulate matter was actually
nore dangerous than 2.5-mcron particulate matter.

DR. MCLAUGHLI N answered yes, because the smaller particles can
travel into the alveoli in the lung. Material at the PM 10 |evel
is courser and often works its way up the respiratory system and
is swall owed or spit out.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if he was famliar with the report prepared
May 20, 2005 by John P. M ddaugh, M D. and Scott Arnold, Ph.D.

DR. MCLAUGHLI N sai d yes.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if that was the npbst recent report avail able
on asbestos-rel ated di seases in Northwest Al aska.

DR, MCLAUGHLIN replied the agency for toxic substances and
di sease registry (ATSDR) published a report in June 2007. It was
a report on an investigation that ATSDR conducted in August 2005
in the Anbler area | ooking at whether road dust fromall-terrain
vehicles (ATVs) exposed riders and wal kers to harnful |evels of
asbestos. The final report concluded that: 1)the dust levels in
Anmbler were a public health hazard for the community; 2)
asbestos levels resulting fromriding an ATV on the gravel roads
posed an unacceptable public health risk; and 3) npbst asbestos
fibers found in Anbler were shorter in length. The final
recommendations were to: 1) close access to the gravel pit; 2)
stop using gravel from the pit; 3) place a barrier and clean
fill where children may have contact with contam nated soil; and
4) educate the community about asbestos and dust.

CHAIR FRENCH asked Dr. MLaughlin to send him a copy of the
report.

DR. MCLAUGHLI N agr eed.

2:16: 23 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI referred to the third bullet point on page
2 of the May 20, 2005 report, and asked the nanme of the DHSS
epi dem ol ogi st who visited Maniil aq.

DR MCLAUGHLIN recalled that it was Dr. Mrc Chinpnas, and
offered to follow up if that was incorrect. He added that Dr.
Chi nronas worked with DHSS but was from the U S. Centers for
D sease Control and Prevention

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 23, 2012



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI revi ewed the chest x-ray and pleural change
data in the second bullet point and asked how it conpared to
nati onal or statew de averages.

DR. MCLAUGHLI N offered to follow up with the information

2:18: 37 PM
MORGAN JOHNSON, Mayor, City of Anbler, Anbler, AK urged the
commttee to pass SB 180 with the 0.25 percent NOA threshol d.

2:20: 20 PM

SCOIT JONES, Vice-Mayor, City of Anbler, Anbler, AK, confirned
that dust was a problem in Anbler when conditions were dry. In
fact, the 2005 report said it was difficult to neasure the
asbestos levels because of the dust. He described palliative
measures to control dust and said masks and respirators were
commonly used. Referring to the chest x-ray data in the 2005
report, he said it did not take into consideration the nunber of
snokers. He reviewed the existing gravel pits in the Anbler area
and asked the commttee to set the standard so that 0.25 percent
was equivalent to zero contam nation

CHAI R FRENCH asked how many of the projects that Anbler needed
wer e roads and how nmany were non-roads.

MR. JONES replied nost of the pending projects need gravel.
These include foundations for houses, capping the road to the
gravel pit, erosion control, and the Gizzly Bridge and road to
the airport.

CHAI R FRENCH restated the questi on.

MR. JONES estimated that nore than half of the projects were
r oad-r el at ed.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if it was typically very windy in
Anbl er.

MR. JONES replied it could be very windy at tines.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if it mght be a problem to have a
gravel pit near town that generated dust that contained
asbest os.

MR. JONES replied the gravel pit caused mnor problens because

the area was not silty. The road to the airport was nuch nore
probl ematic, because the crush and fill material was nostly

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 15- March 23, 2012



silt. In conclusion, he reiterated the inportance of adopting
the 0.25 percent standard as equivalent to zero contam nation.

CHAI R FRENCH pointed out that the original bill set the standard
at equal to or less than 0.25 percent and the current version
said equal to or nore than 0.25 percent, which was appreciably
hi gher .

MR. JONES said he had lived in Anbler for four years and had yet
to see any asbestos-rel ated heal th probl ens.

CHAI R FRENCH pointed out page two of the report said, "O 28
residents of Anbler whose chest x-rays were reviewed, 2 had
pl eural changes that were probably caused by prior exposure to
asbestos. "

MAYOR JOHNSON said he would like to see nore dust abatenent
neasures to protect current and future generations. He added
that Anbl er had an opportunity if a nearby m ne were to open.

2:32:15 PM

ELI ZABETH SAAGULI K HENSLEY, Corporate and Public Policy Liaison,
NANA Regional Corporation, stated support for SB 180. She
hi ghl i ghted that NANA cl osed the gravel pit after becom ng aware
in 2003 that the gravel contained NOA. NANA was al so aware that
there were ways to work with the gravel and nmitigate potential
risks, and they were willing to do that.

2: 33: 55 PM

LANCE MLLER, Vice President of Resources, NANA Regiona
Corporation, said that in the discussion about dust and the use
of gravel that contains NOA, it was inportant to realize that
Anbl er was under snow for a significant nunber of nonths each
year. He said NANA would be wlling to change the upper limt
and perhaps the |ower percentage if that would help nove the
bill along. He said it was inportant to renmenber that El Dorado
County California successfully addressed the issue and those
asbestos levels were higher than typically found in the Anbler
area. There are ways to mtigate the asbestos with SOPs and
proper protections for workers and construction projects, he
st at ed.

CHAI R FRENCH pointed out that the California Air Resources Board
took steps to mtigate the use of NOA and set the allowable
|l evel at less than 0.25 percent. He said another difference was
that California did not offer the imunity that SB 180 offered.
The immnity provision was a central concern of the bil

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- March 23, 2012



proponents and that was why the comrittee was westling with it,
he sai d.

He asked Ms. Hensley if she had considered saying that the
gravel should contain no nore than 0.5 percent NOA.

M5. HENSLEY replied NANA woul d consider a different |evel.
MR. M LLER said NANA woul d have to think hard about 0.5 percent.

CHAIR FRENCH urged them to think about sonme conprom se because
0.25 or greater did not have an upper limt.

MR. MLLER said NANA would agree to an upper limt. He added
that a ot of the nmaterial in the area was in the 0.1, 0.25, to
0.5 range, and California recognized 0.25 percent as NOA free.

SENATOR COGHI LL said he wunderstood the bill to say that a
certified plan would be required when NOA |evels were equal to
or greater than 0.25 percent. He surmsed that the higher the
| evel of NOA, the tighter the plan woul d be.

MR. SCOIT agr eed.

CHAIR FRENCH referred to page 4, line 17, and asked if the bil
of fered inmunity when the gravel or other aggregate material had
equal to or greater than 0.25 percent naturally occurring
asbest os by nass.

MR. SCOIT said yes.

CHAIR FRENCH pointed out that, as witten, the bill offered
immunity if the level was 0.5 percent, 1.0 percent, or 5.0
per cent NOA.

SENATOR COGHI LL offered his understanding that the plan differed
based on the I evel of NOA in the aggregate material .

CHAI R FRENCH asked Ms. Anjilvel to comment.

2:41: 35 PM

SARI THA ANJI LVEL, Assistant Attorney General, G vil D vision,
Departnment of Law (DOL), said she was advising DOIPF. She
offered her wunderstanding that regulations prescribe for each
project a site-specific plan that takes into account the anounts
of naturally occurring asbestos.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- March 23, 2012



CHAIR FRENCH asked if the bill, as currently drafted,
established an upper limt of NOA that the gravel could contain.

MS. ANJI LVEL answer ed no.

CHAIR FRENCH observed that the bill could potentially offer
immunity to people who use aggregate that had two percent
natural |y occurring asbestos.

M5. ANJILVEL replied that was the correct reading, but
regul ations could be pronmulgated to require the site-specific
plan to balance the use of gravel that contained high
concentrations of NOA agai nst how econom cally reasonable it was
to go el sewhere to find gravel

CHAIR FRENCH asked if there was a definition of "economcally
unr easonabl e. "

M5. ANJILVEL answered no, but DOTPF as accustoned to using the
concept, as it related to doing projects in the best interest of
the state. A conplicating factor was that because there was no
safe level of asbestos, DOTPF had to strike a bal ance between
getting the project done and any potential risk. As M. Healy
testified, taking proper mtigation procedures struck that
bal ance. The nore likely the asbestos was to cause a hazard, the
nore DOTPF would scrutinize the project to see if it was
econonmi cally reasonable to use that naterial .

2:45: 41 PM
CHAI R FRENCH commented that DOTPF woul d probably work harder if
they were potentially |iable.

M5. ANJI LVEL agreed that inmmunity renoved a protection

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if she believed that it was possible
to make the use of NOA safe for everyone invol ved.

MS. ANJILVEL replied she did not have the expertise to answer.
2:46: 50 PM
CHAIR FRENCH closed public testinony and held SB 180 in

comm tt ee.

SB 138- THI RD- PARTY CHARGES ON TELEPHONE BI LLS

2:47:12 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- March 23, 2012



CHAIR FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 138. [CSSB
138(L&C) was before the commttee.]

2:47: 21 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI, sponsor of SB 138, said this bill dealt
with "telephone cranmmng,"” which as the practice of placing
unaut hori zed, third-party charges on telephone bills. This was a
multi-billion-dollar problem and the federal government had

started to take noti ce.

CHAIR FRENCH said that because of tine constraints, the
committee woul d hear nost public testinony on Monday.

2:50: 12 PM

THOMAS PRESLEY, intern for Senator Welechowski, said SB 138
bans the practice of crammng, which is adding unauthorized
third-party charges to consuners' telephone bills. He explained
that cranmng began in the 1990s, and was an unintended
consequence of regulatory action that opened telephone bills to
other charges. Following a spike in conplaints, regulatory
agencies opted for a voluntary approach to end the practice, but
current evidence indicates that telecomunications conpanies
place approximately 300 mllion third-party charges on
custoners' telephone bills, equaling over $2 billion per year.
In one exanple, a woman who disputed charges on her phone bil
was told that her husband authorized the service, but he had
been dead for 13 years.

MR. PRESLEY said that cramming occurs by never interacting with
custoners or by wusing abusive marketing techniques to get
custoners' tel ephone nunbers. The consuner's phone nunber then
becones a formof tacit authorization.

He said that charges for satellite TV and | ong di stance coverage
are legitimte, and these services contract directly wth
t el ephone conpanies. The process for contracting cram services
onto bills is different. O 500 people who responded to
inquiries about <crammng charges, not a single person or
busi ness had authorized the charges. Unauthorized charges occur
for bank vaults, el evat or s, 911 systens, fire alarns,
governnmental agencies and schools. QObvious exanples are of a
nodem i ncurring charges for voice mail and of an energency line
incurring charges for online diet services.

MR. PRESLEY said a telephone auditing conmpany found nore than
800 third-party vendors placed unauthorized charges on their

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -19- March 23, 2012



clients' telephone bills. Consuners described their experience

using words like fraud, theft and stealing. A Federa
Communi cati ons Conm ssion (FCC) graphic indicated that 15 to 20
mllion American households receive cram charges on their

landline bills each year, but only 1 in 20 custoners are aware
of the charges.

MR. PRESLEY presented a graphic to illustrate the conplexity of
cranm ng charges. One third-party vendor, M S&S, showed only
975 wunique nunbers dialed into its voice nail service, yet it
was charging at |east 97,000 custoners for the service. Another
third-party vender enrolled 64,000 tel ephone custoners in an on-
line photo storage service, yet less than 2 percent of the
custoners took advantage of the service. In another instance,
U.S. Senate conmittee staff was the first to log onto a casua
gam ng service offered by Easy Phone Bill, despite its having
enrolled nore than 20,000 customers and having earned al nost $1
mllion.

He explained that hub conpanies subcontract enrollnment and
aut hori zations. The hub conpanies receive the phone nunbers and
pass them along to billing aggregators through third-party
vendors, and the charges are forwarded to telephone bills.

Third-party vendors offer services like electronic fax, photo
storage, and online backup. To gain access to bills, they
contract with billing aggregators. Despite their offers, many
third-party vendors are actually front conpani es. Thi s
rel ationship allows hub conpanies to shift enrollnments to other
vendors to nmask |arge nunbers of conplaints. Billing aggregators

act as internediaries between phone conpanies and third-party
vendors.

A hub conpany called DaData clainmed to provide support services
to 40 third-party vendors, but eventually admtted that it
controlled the actual electronic fax service offered by 25
clients. He provided a list of the 45 conpanies that offer
el ectronic fax service yet appear to be operated exclusively by
DaDat a.

He said the U S. Senate staff interviewed the president of WM
Network who admtted that he "only signed his nanme to docunents
and knew not hi ng about the conpany." Having a hub conpany wth
smal ler entities beneath it makes it easy to shift the conplaint
threshold and difficult to track, dispute and renove charges.

MR. PRESLEY reiterated that disputing cram charges is difficult
and costly. One retail chain reported $550,000 in unauthorized

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 20- March 23, 2012



charges on its telephone bills over the past decade and anot her
estimated it spent $400,000 battling unauthorized third-party
charges. One custoner said each of the five times that charges
were added to his bill it took at least a half hour to get the
servi ces renoved.

MR. PRESLEY said Section 1 of SB 138 enforces truth in billing
gui del i nes. I t requires carriers to disclose detailed
information on bills, precludes carriers from billing custoners
wi thout including details of third-party services, and forbids a
carrier from discontinuing service to custonmers that use the
contact information to dispute or contest a charge. Section 2

adds a paragraph to the list of wunlawful acts and practices
under the Consumer Protection statutes. Section 3 creates a new
section that precludes a carrier frombilling for another vendor

wi t hout express authorization. Section 4 adds the new unl awf ul
act or practice from Section 2 to the exclusive jurisdiction of
the state, a regulatory board or a comnm ssion.

MR. PRESLEY said recent events include that Verizon tw days ago
announced it would discontinue charging third-party enhanced

billing services to phone bills. Senator Rockefeller from West
Virginia said he would introduce federal legislation to ban al

third-party billing on phone bills. Illinois tw days ago
unani nously passed a total ban on third-party billing. He said

this is different from SB 138, which allows express
aut hori zation of third-party services.

MR. PRESLEY said that the recent opposition letter from Al aska
Communi cation Services (ACS) specifically conplains about the
possibility of customers short paying disputed charges. However,
all local exchange carriers operate under truth in billing
guidelines so there is no opportunity to shortchange a | ocal
carrier by not paying an unauthorized charge.

3:00: 30 PM
MARI E DARLIN, AARP, stated that AARP supports SB 138, a consuner
protection bill that addresses the deceptive narketing practice

of cramm ng. She noted that AARP submtted witten testinony to
the previous conmittee and a letter would be forthcomng to this
conmittee.

3:02: 09 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced he would hold SB 138 in comittee.

3:02:15 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -21- March 23, 2012



There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Chair French adjourned the Senate Judiciary Standing Conmmttee
meeting at 3:02 p.m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -22- March 23, 2012



